

**ADOPTED REGULATION OF THE  
COMMISSIONER OF INSURANCE**

**LCB File No. R026-12**

Effective September 14, 2012

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~[omitted material]~~ is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 679B.130 and 686A.015; §§2 and 3, NRS 679B.130, 679B.138 and 686A.015; §4, NRS 679B.130.

A REGULATION relating to insurance; prescribing the form which must be used for the submission of certain claims; repealing certain provisions relating to the submission of certain information for an insurance claim; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Section 1.** NAC 686A.282 is hereby amended to read as follows:

686A.282 A “clean claim” means a claim:

1. That contains the ~~[required]~~ information ~~[pursuant to NAC 686A.292, 686A.294 and 686A.296 or 686A.298, 686A.300 and 686A.302;]~~ *required to be included for the applicable use of a form prescribed in NAC 686A.288;* and

2. For which any additional information that has been requested pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 683A.0879, 689A.410, 689B.255, 689C.485, 695B.2505 or 695C.185 because of any particular or unusual circumstances that would have impeded the payer from paying the claim has been received.

**Sec. 2.** NAC 686A.288 is hereby amended to read as follows:

686A.288 1. The payer of a claim under a contract for health insurance:

(a) Shall accept a claim submitted on a form that:

(1) Has been approved by the United States Department of Health and Human Services for the filing of a claim under a contract for health insurance; and

(2) Contains the information necessary to constitute a clean claim.

(b) Shall not require the completion of any other form for the purpose of processing the claim.

2. For the purposes of this section, a “form that has been approved by the United States Department of Health and Human Services” means:

(a) For claims submitted by a hospital or other institutional provider, ~~Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA)~~ *Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services* Form ~~1450,~~ *CMS-1450*, which is commonly referred to as ~~UB-92 (formerly UB-82),~~ *UB-04*, or its successor form; and

(b) For claims submitted by a health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement, ~~Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA)~~ *Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services* Form ~~1500,~~ *CMS-1500*, or its successor form.

3. ~~Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) Form 1450 and Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) Form 1500 are hereby adopted by reference. A copy of HCFA Form 1450 or HCFA Form 1500 may be obtained on the Internet, free of charge, at . Copies of HCFA Form 1500 may also be obtained by mail from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 979050, St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000, or by toll free telephone at (866) 512-1800, for the price of \$16 for a package of 100.~~ *Form CMS-1450, also known as the UB-04 claim form, published by the National Uniform Billing Committee, is available from the American Hospital Association on the Internet at <http://aha.org/>, by telephone at (800) 242-2626, or by mail at 155 North Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60606,*

*at the price of \$46 for members and \$56 for nonmembers. Copies of the form may also be available through office supply stores.*

*4. Form CMS-1500, published by the National Uniform Claim Committee, is available from the United State Government Printing Office on the Internet website <http://bookstore.gpo.gov>, by mail at P.O. Box 979050, St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000, or by toll-free telephone at (866) 512-1800, at the price of \$29. Copies of the form may also be available through local printing companies and office supply stores.*

**Sec. 3.** NAC 686A.302 is hereby amended to read as follows:

686A.302 1. A payer shall not use or require a hospital or other institutional provider to use any field for purposes that are inconsistent with the data required ~~[pursuant to NAC 686A.298 and 686A.300,]~~ *for the submission of a clean claim*, or in addition to the applicable standard code set.

2. A hospital or other institutional provider may elect to include data in addition to the data required ~~[pursuant to NAC 686A.298 and 686A.300,]~~ *for the submission of a clean claim.*

**Sec. 4.** NAC 686A.292, 686A.294, 686A.296, 686A.298, 686A.300 and 689A.431 are hereby repealed.

---

---

## TEXT OF REPEALED SECTIONS

---

---

**686A.292 Claim by health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement:**  
**Required form and data. (NRS 679B.130, 679B.136, 679B.138, 686A.015)** A claim form

submitted by a health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement must be submitted on Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) Form 1500 and must include the following data:

1. Subscriber's plan ID number (HCFA Form 1500, field 1a);
2. Patient's name (HCFA Form 1500, field 2);
3. Patient's date of birth and gender (HCFA Form 1500, field 3);
4. Subscriber's name (HCFA Form 1500, field 4);
5. Patient's address, including the street or post office box, city and zip code (HCFA Form 1500, field 5);
6. Patient's relationship to the subscriber (HCFA Form 1500, field 6);
7. Subscriber's address, including the street or post office box, city and zip code (HCFA Form 1500, field 7);
8. Whether the patient's condition is related to:
  - (a) Employment (HCFA Form 1500, field 10a);
  - (b) An auto accident (HCFA Form 1500, field 10b); or
  - (c) An accident other than an auto accident (HCFA Form 1500, field 10c);
9. Subscriber's policy number (HCFA Form 1500, field 11);
10. Except in the case of a laboratory that has been issued a license pursuant to chapter 652 of NRS:
  - (a) The patient's status (HCFA Form 1500, field 8);
  - (b) The subscriber's birth date and gender (HCFA Form 1500, field 11a);
  - (c) The name of the payer (HCFA Form 1500, field 11c);

(d) Whether the patient has had the same or a similar illness (HCFA Form 1500, field 15);

and

(e) The date of the current illness, injury or pregnancy (HCFA Form 1500, field 14);

11. Disclosure of any other health benefit plans (HCFA Form 1500, field 11d);

12. Patient's or authorized person's signature or notation that the signature is on file with the health care practitioner (HCFA Form 1500, field 12);

13. Subscriber's or authorized person's signature or notation that the signature is on file with the health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement, if applicable (HCFA Form 1500, field 13);

14. Except in the case of a health care practitioner for emergency services:

(a) Whether the patient has had the same or a similar illness (HCFA Form 1500, field 15);

and

(b) The name of the referring physician or health maintenance organization (HCFA Form 1500, field 17);

15. Hospitalization dates related to current services, if applicable (HCFA Form 1500, field 18);

16. Diagnosis codes or nature of the illness or injury (HCFA Form 1500, field 21);

17. Date of service (HCFA Form 1500, field 24A);

18. Place of service codes for all claims, as designated by the Health Care Financing Administration for Medicare (HCFA Form 1500, field 24B);

19. Procedure code (HCFA Form 1500, field 24D);

20. Diagnosis code by specific service (HCFA Form 1500, field 24E);

21. Charge for each listed service (HCFA Form 1500, field 24F);

22. Number of days, time, in minutes, and start to stop time or units (HCFA Form 1500, field 24G);
23. The carrier-assigned provider number until the National Provider Identifier is developed and assigned, if applicable (HCFA Form 1500, field 24K);
24. Federal tax ID number of the health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement (HCFA Form 1500, field 25);
25. Patient's account number (HCFA Form 1500, field 26);
26. Total charge (HCFA Form 1500, field 28);
27. For claims submitted electronically, a computer-printed name as the signature of the health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement (HCFA Form 1500, field 31);
28. For claims not submitted electronically, the signature of the health care practitioner who provided the service or the other person entitled to reimbursement who provided the service, or a notation that the signature is on file with the health maintenance organization or preferred provider (HCFA Form 1500, field 31);
29. Name and address of the facility where the services were rendered, if other than a home or an office (HCFA Form 1500, field 32);
30. The billing name, address, zip code, phone number and, if applicable, carrier-assigned provider number until the National Provider Identifier (NPI) is developed and assigned to the health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement (HCFA Form 1500, field 33);  
and
31. Any other field or essential data necessary to comply with the applicable standard code set.

**686A.294 Claim by health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement:**

**Additional data required under certain circumstances. (NRS 679B.130, 679B.138,**

**686A.015)** In addition to the data required by NAC 686A.292, a claim submitted by a health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement must include the following data if circumstances exist that render the data applicable to the specific claim being filed:

1. If the patient is covered by more than one contract for health insurance, the following information that is applicable to the other insured or enrollee:

- (a) Name (HCFA Form 1500, field 9);
- (b) Policy or group number (HCFA Form 1500, field 9a);
- (c) Date of birth (HCFA Form 1500, field 9b);
- (d) Plan name, such as employer, school or other organization (HCFA Form 1500, field 9c);

and

- (e) Name of the health maintenance organization or insurer (HCFA Form 1500, field 9d);

2. Except in the case of a laboratory that was issued a license pursuant to chapter 652 of NRS, if the contract for health insurance is a group plan, the subscriber's plan name, including, without limitation, the employer, school or other organization (HCFA Form 1500, field 11b);

3. When prior authorization is required, the prior authorization number (HCFA Form 1500, field 23);

4. If the claim is between parties to a global contract, the code pursuant to the global contract (HCFA Form 1500, field 24D);

5. If the claim is for services rendered pursuant to the Medicaid Program, the code established by the Medicaid Program (HCFA Form 1500, field 24D);

6. When a modifier code is used to explain unusual circumstances, the modifier code (HCFA Form 1500, field 24D);

7. When an assignment has been proposed, whether the assignment was accepted (HCFA Form 1500, field 27); and

8. If an amount has been paid to the health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement submitting the claim, by the patient or subscriber, or on behalf of the patient or subscriber:

(a) The amount paid (HCFA Form 1500, field 29); and

(b) The balance due (HCFA Form 1500, field 30).

**686A.296 Claim by health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement: Prohibited use of field; optional inclusion of additional data. (NRS 679B.130, 679B.138, 686A.015)**

1. A payer shall not use or require a health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement to use any field for purposes that are inconsistent with the essential data required pursuant to NAC 686A.292 and 686A.294, or in addition to the applicable standard code set.

2. A health care practitioner or other person entitled to reimbursement may elect to include data in addition to the data required pursuant to NAC 686A.292 and 686A.294.

**686A.298 Claim by hospital or other institutional provider: Required form and data. (NRS 679B.130, 679B.138, 686A.015)** A claim form submitted by a hospital or other institutional provider must be submitted on Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) Form 1450 and must include the following data:

1. Name, address and telephone number of the hospital or other institutional provider (HCFA Form 1450, field 1);



2. Patient's control number (HCFA Form 1450, field 3);
3. Type of bill code (HCFA Form 1450, field 4);
4. Federal tax ID number of the hospital or other institutional provider (HCFA Form 1450, field 5);
5. Beginning and ending date of claim period (HCFA Form 1450, field 6);
6. Patient's name (HCFA Form 1450, field 12);
7. Patient's address (HCFA Form 1450, field 13);
8. Patient's date of birth (HCFA Form 1450, field 14);
9. Patient's gender (HCFA Form 1450, field 15);
10. Patient's marital status (HCFA Form 1450, field 16);
11. Date of admission (HCFA Form 1450, field 17);
12. Admission hour (HCFA Form 1450, field 18);
13. Type of admission, including, without limitation, emergent, urgent, elective or newborn (HCFA Form 1450, field 19);
14. Source of admission code (HCFA Form 1450, field 20);
15. Patient-status-at-discharge code (HCFA Form 1450, field 22);
16. Medical record number (HCFA Form 1450, field 23);
17. Responsible party's name and address (HCFA Form 1450, field 38);
18. Value codes and amounts (HCFA Form 1450, fields 39-41);
19. Applicable revenue code (HCFA Form 1450, field 42);
20. Revenue description (HCFA Form 1450, field 43);
21. Service date (HCFA Form 1450, field 45);
22. Units of service (HCFA Form 1450, field 46);

23. Total charges (HCFA Form 1450, field 47);
24. Noncovered charges (HCFA Form 1450, field 48);
25. Name of the payer (HCFA Form 1450, field 50);
26. Provider number (HCFA Form 1450, field 51);
27. Release of information (HCFA Form 1450, field 52);
28. Assignment of benefits (HCFA Form 1450, field 53);
29. Estimated amount due (HCFA Form 1450, field 55);
30. Subscriber's name (HCFA Form 1450, field 58);
31. Patient's relationship to the subscriber (HCFA Form 1450, field 59);
32. Patient's or subscriber's certificate number, health claim number and ID number (HCFA Form 1450, field 60);
33. Treatment authorization code (HCFA Form 1450, field 63);
34. Principal diagnosis code (HCFA Form 1450, field 67);
35. Admitting diagnosis (HCFA Form 1450, field 76);
36. Attending physician's ID (HCFA Form 1450, field 82);
37. Other physician's ID (HCFA Form 1450, field 83);
38. Signature of the provider representative or notation that the signature is on file with the payer (HCFA Form 1450, field 85);
39. Date the bill was submitted (HCFA Form 1450, field 86); and
40. Any other field or essential data necessary to comply with the applicable standard code set.

**686A.300 Claim by hospital or other institutional provider: Additional data required under certain circumstances. (NRS 679B.130, 679B.138, 686A.015)** In addition to the data

required pursuant to NAC 686A.298, a claim submitted to a payer by a hospital or other institutional provider must include the following data if circumstances exist that render the data applicable to the specific claim being filed:

1. If Medicare is a primary or secondary payer:
  - (a) The covered days (HCFA Form 1450, field 7);
  - (b) The noncovered days (HCFA Form 1450, field 8); and
  - (c) The coinsurance days (HCFA Form 1450, field 9);
2. If Medicare is a primary or secondary payer and the patient was an inpatient, the lifetime reserve days (HCFA Form 1450, field 10);
3. If the patient was an inpatient or was admitted for outpatient observation, the discharge hour (HCFA Form 1450, field 21);
4. If the HCFA Form 1450 manual contains condition codes appropriate to the patient's condition, the condition codes (HCFA Form 1450, fields 24-30);
5. If the HCFA Form 1450 manual contains occurrence codes appropriate to the patient's condition, the occurrence codes and dates (HCFA Form 1450, fields 32-35);
6. If the HCFA Form 1450 manual contains an occurrence span code appropriate to the patient's condition, the occurrence span code and date (HCFA Form 1450, field 36);
7. If there is a primary or secondary payer, the HCFA Common Procedure Coding System/Rates (HCFA Form 1450, field 44);
8. If the claim is between parties to a global contract, the code pursuant to the global contract (HCFA Form 1450, field 44);
9. If payments have been made to the hospital by the patient or another payer, the prior payments (HCFA Form 1450, field 54);

10. If there are payers of higher priority than the payer, including, without limitation, workers' compensation:
  - (a) The employment status code (HCFA Form 1450, field 64); and
  - (b) The employer name (HCFA Form 1450, field 65);
11. If there is workers' compensation involved, the employer location (HCFA Form 1450, field 66);
12. If there are diagnoses other than the principal diagnosis, the diagnoses codes other than the principal diagnosis code (HCFA Form 1450, fields 68-75);
13. For services provided in an emergency department of a hospital, the diagnoses codes describing the patient's signs or presenting symptoms (HCFA Form 1450, fields 68-75);
14. If the HCFA Form 1450 manual indicates a procedural coding method appropriate to the patient's condition, the procedural coding methods used (HCFA Form 1450, field 79);
15. If the patient has undergone an inpatient or outpatient surgical procedure, the principal procedure code (HCFA Form 1450, field 80); and
16. If additional surgical procedures were performed, and the HCFA Form 1450 manual indicates a procedural coding method, the procedure codes (HCFA Form 1450, field 81).

**689A.431 Report concerning health insurance on franchise plan. (NRS 679B.130)** On or before March 1 of each calendar year, an individual carrier that issues health insurance on a franchise plan pursuant to NRS 689A.370 shall file with the Commissioner a report concerning its operation during the preceding calendar year. The report must include, without limitation, the number of:

1. Policies of health insurance on a franchise plan that were in effect as of December 31 of the preceding calendar year; and

2. Employers who authorized policies of health insurance on a franchise plan during the preceding calendar year.

**NRS 233B.066**  
**INFORMATIONAL STATEMENT**  
**LCB File No. R026-12**

A workshop was held on June 5, 2012, and a hearing was held on June 14, 2012, at the offices of the Department of Business and Industry, Division of Insurance (“Division”), 1818 East College Parkway, Carson City, Nevada 89706, with a simultaneous videoconference conducted at the Bradley Building, 2501 East Sahara Avenue, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor Conference Room, Las Vegas, Nevada 89104, in regard to adoption of the regulation concerning the form used for submitting certain claims, repealing provisions relating to certain claims information, and repealing other matters.

Public comment was solicited by posting notices of the workshop and hearing at the following public locations: the Division’s Web site, the Division’s Carson City and Las Vegas offices, Carson City Courthouse, Office of the Attorney General, Capitol Building Lobby, Capitol Building Press Room, Blasdel Building, and Legislative Counsel Bureau; and by providing the notices of the workshop and hearing to: the Donald W. Reynolds Press Center, Nevada State Library, Carson City Library, Churchill County Library, Clark County District Library, Douglas County Library, Elko County Library, Esmeralda County Library, Eureka Branch Library, Humboldt County Library, Lander County Library, Lincoln County Library, Lyon County Library, Mineral County Library, Pershing County Library, Storey County Library, Tonopah Public Library, Washoe County Library, and White Pine County Library.

The Division maintains a list of interested parties, comprised mainly of insurance companies, agencies and other persons regulated by the Division. These persons were notified of the workshop and hearing and that a copy of the regulation could be obtained from or examined at the offices of the Division.

The workshop was attended by two (2) interested individuals in Carson City and one (1) interested individual in Las Vegas. The Division did not receive any written comments from interested parties. Oral testimony was provided by Cliff King, representing the Division. There were no public comments, testimony or questions by the industry or interested parties.

The hearing was not attended by any interested individual in Carson City, and one (1) individual attended in Las Vegas. During the hearing, oral testimony was provided by Cliff King, representing the Division. There were no public comments, testimony or questions by the industry or interested parties.

After considering the record and the recommendation of the hearing officer, the Commissioner has issued an order adopting the regulation, LCB File No. R026-12, as proposed, as a permanent regulation of the Division.

The economic impact of the regulation is as follows:

- (a) On the business it is to regulate: The proposed regulation should have no economic impact on the industry that the Division of Insurance regulates.

- (b) On Small Business: The proposed regulation should have no economic impact on small business.
- (c) On the public: The proposed regulation should have no economic impact on the public.

There should be no cost to the Division to comply with the proposed regulation since the repealed regulations are obsolete, and the new required forms have been in use for at least five years. The Division is not aware of any overlap or duplication of the regulation with any state, local or federal regulation.

STATE OF NEVADA  
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY  
DIVISION OF INSURANCE

IN THE MATTER OF THE

CAUSE NO. **12.0191**  
LCB FILE NO. **R026-12**

**REGULATION RELATING TO THE  
FILING OF CLAIMS BY MEDICAL  
PROVIDERS; REPEALS PROVISIONS  
RELATING TO CERTAIN CLAIMS  
INFORMATION; REPEALS OTHER  
RELATED MATTERS**

**SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS  
AND ORDER**

---

**SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS**

A public workshop, as required by NRS 233B.061, on the proposed regulation relating to insurance, prescribing the form used for submitting certain claims, repealing provisions relating to certain claims information, and repealing other matters, was held before Amy L. Parks, Hearing Officer, on June 5, 2012, at the office of the Nevada Division of Insurance (“Division”) in Carson City, Nevada, and videoconferenced to the Bradley Building in Las Vegas, Nevada. A public hearing on the proposed regulation was also held before the Hearing Officer, on June 14, 2012, in Carson City, Nevada, and videoconferenced to the Bradley Building in Las Vegas, Nevada. The regulation is proposed under the authority of NRS 679B.130, 686A.015, 679B.130, 679B.138, and 686A.015.

The Division received no written comments, nor oral testimony, from the industry or interested parties. The workshop was attended by two (2) individuals in Carson City and one (1) individual in Las Vegas. The hearing was attended by one (1) individual in Las Vegas, and no interested party attended in Carson City. Cliff King, representing the Division, provided testimony before the Hearing Officer at the workshop and at the hearing.

Based upon the testimony provided,

1. Section 1 of R026-12 amends the definition of a “clean claim” for purposes of a Medical Provider making a claim for fees from an insurer. Section 1 also removes the reference to six (6) specific regulations which are amended or



repealed in Sections 3 and 4 of R026-12. The new language replaces those regulations with updated references.

2. Section 2 amends NAC 686A.288 by updating the form to be used by medical providers when making a claim from insurers. The new claims forms are prescribed by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and are available electronically and may be filed electronically.
3. Section 3 amends NAC 686A.302 by providing updated information regarding the filing of a claim by a medical provider. An insurer cannot require a hospital or other institution to provide information not specifically prescribed on the CMS form, but it does allow a hospital or other institutional provider to include data not prescribed on the form.
4. Section 4 repeals regulations that are now obsolete. NAC 686A.292, 686A.294, 686A.296, 686A.298 and 686A.300 all provide specific instructions on the completion of the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) Forms 1450 and 1500. These forms are no longer in use and the regulations are obsolete.

Section 4 also repeals NAC 689A.431 which requires insurers to annually report the number of franchise health plans in effect on December 31 of the previous calendar year. These plans are no longer in use, making the reporting requirement no longer necessary.

#### **RECOMMENDED ORDER OF THE HEARING OFFICER**

Based upon the testimony received at the workshop and hearing, and the written comments received, if any, it is recommended that the proposed regulation concerning the filing of claims by medical providers and the repeal of certain regulations related thereto, LCB File No. R026-12, be adopted, as proposed, as a permanent regulation of the Division. See Exhibit A.

SO RECOMMENDED this 3rd day of July, 2012

\_\_\_\_\_  
/s/  
AMY L. PARKS  
Hearing Officer

#### **ORDER OF THE COMMISSIONER**

Having reviewed the record in this matter and the recommendation of the Hearing Officer, it is hereby ordered that the proposed regulation concerning the filing of claims by

